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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of
Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment
- KPSC (“Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial positon as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial positon of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Acconntants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ITESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key audit
matters.

Valnation of Available for Sale Investments

The Group’s available for sale investments include significant unquoted investments. Due to their unique
structure and terms, the valuation of these instruments is based either on external independent valuations or
on entity-developed internal models. Therefore, there is significant measurement uncertainty involved in
valuations. As a result, the valuations of these instruments was significant to our audit. We have, therefore,
spent significant audit efforts in assessing the appropriateness of the valuatons and underlying assumptions.
The Group’s disclosures about its available for sale investments are included in Notes 17 and 34.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of Available for Sale Investments (continued)

Our audit procedures included agreeing carrying value of the unquoted investments to the Group’s internal or
external valuations prepared using valuation techniques, assessing and challenging the appropriateness of
estimates, assumptions and valuation methodology and obtained supporting documentation and explanations
to corroborate the valuations.

Eguity Method of Acconnting

The Group has interests in number of associates which are significant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Group exercises significant influence over its associates and consequently accounts for under
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the Group’s interests in the associates are initially
stated at cost, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates less any impairment. The geographically dispersed structure increases the complexity of the
Group’s control environment and our ability as Group’s auditor to obtain an appropriate level of understanding
of these entities including any related party transactions. Due to these factors and the significance of the
investment in associates to the Group’s consolidated financial statements we consider this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, determining the nature and extent of audit procedures to be
carried out for associates and selecting significant associates based on the size and/or risk profile of these
entities. During our audit we considered the geographical diversity of Group’s structure and communicated
with the component auditors. We also provided instructions to the component auditors covering the significant
areas and risks to be addressed including the identification of related parties and transactions. Furthermore, we
evaluated the Group’s methodology and testing of the key assumptions used by the Group in determining the
associates’ recoverable amount based on value-in-use. We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in Notes 4.10 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2017 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Group’s 2017 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our Auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our Auditor’s
report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our Auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this Auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to contnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditot’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Idenufy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s board of
directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that
we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of
2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the Parent
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2017 that might have had 2 material effect on the business or financial position of the
Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not
become aware of any material violations of the provisions of Law 7 of 2010, as amended, relating to the Capital
Markets Authority and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2017 that might have had a
material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware, of any material violations
of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and
the organisation of the banking business, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2017
that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

-~

NN
Anwar Y. Al-Qatami, F.C.C.A.
(Licence No. 50-A)
of Grant Thomton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Kuwait
29 March 2018
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consoclidated Financia!l Statements

31 December 2017

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2017 2016 *
KD KD
Continuing Operations
Revenue
Income from instalment credit debtors 7 1,665,992 1,882,075
Rental income s 148,786 174,118
Interest income 709,065 503,777
Gain on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss 299,287 1,914
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss 215,465 (1,911)
(Loss)/gain on sale of available for sale investments (48,214) 15,688
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries 6.2.1 76,216 -
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 6.2.2 (46,909) -
Share of results of associates 18 477,402 437,419
Dividend income 8 1,966,989 2,138,708
Brokerage income 231,951 391,770
Gain on sale of properties held for trading 17,440 -
Reversal of provision for properties held for trading 16 120,561 -
Advisory fees 2,188,642 2,139,853
Loss on foreign currency exchange (252,520) (669,381)
Other income 286,863 459 167
8,057,016 7473197
Expenses and other charges
Staff costs (2,516,143) (2,533,815)
General and administrative expenses (1,522,914) (1,295,648)
Finance costs g {(1,712,668) (1,432,404)
Depreciation (446,896) (293,561)
Provision for instalment credit debtors 13 (475,148) (288,524)
Impairment of available for sale investments 17 (77,105) (1,221,213)
Impairment of investment in real estate under development 19 (83,850) (134,161)
(6,834,724) (7,200,026)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,222,292 273,171
(6.2.1 and
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 6.2.2) 963,725 2,342,197
Profit for the year before provisions for contribution to Kuwait
Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS), National
Labour Support Tax (NLST) 2,186,017 2,615,368
Provision for KFAS (587) -
Provision for NLST (34,160) (18,924)
Profit for the year 2,151,270 2,596,444
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 1,741,781 671,417
Non-controlling interests 409,489 1,925,027
Profit for the year 2,151,270 2,596,444
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company (Fils)
- From continuing operations 2.128 0.518
- From discontinued operations 0.058 0.325
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company (Fils) 10 2.186 0.843

* Amount shown here do not correspond with the previously reported consolidated financial statements for
the vear ended 31 December 2016 as a result of adjustments made for discontinued operations as detailed in

Note 6.

The notes set out on pages 12 to 64 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC 6
and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statementis
31 December 2017
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Profit for the year 2,151,270 2,596,444
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of profit
orloss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 2,633,949 (3,994,298)
Available for sale investments:
- Net change in fair value arising during the year 2,039,023 (707,834)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on sale 14,210 (18,392)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 77,105 1,221,913
Share of other comprehensive income of associates 108,319 -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 4,872,606 (3,498,611)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 7,023,876 (902,167)
Afttributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 4,615,566 247,882
Non-controlling interests 2,408,310 (1,150,049)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 7,023,876 (902,167)

The notes set out on pages 12 to 64 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Arzan Financi‘éi Group for Financing and investment - KPSC 7 |

and its Subsidiaries

Consclidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Consolidated statement of financial position

Notes 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 7,805,543 10,103,929
Instalment credit debtors 13 8,931,619 11,118,653
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 14 7,905,472 6,814,873
Accounts receivable and other assets 15 4,944,621 5,821,949
Due from related parties 33 191,306 1,104,711
Properties held for trading 16 1,327,865 1,313,947
Available for sale investments 17 86,466,759 98,812,690
Investment in asscciates 18 28,178,561 47,347,791
Investment in real estate under development 19 4,120,080 4,180,940
Investment properties 20 1,713,944 1,772,684
Property and equipment 21 3,028,056 3,217,772
Total assets 154,613,826 191,609,939
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 22 5,226,027 3,847,752
Accounis payable and other liabilities 23 6,244,242 7,092,993
Due to related parties 33 1,230,500 191,888
Term loans 24 16,380,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable 25 5,267,067 8,085,878
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 1,175,185 925,579
Total liabilities 35,523,021 38,874,090
Equity
Share capital 26 80,288,256 80,288,256
Share premium 26 23,803,273 23,803,273
Treasury shares 27 (559,232) (559,232)
Legal reserve 28 246,687 69,034
Voluntary reserve 28 246,687 69,034
Foreign currency translation reserve (415,344) (1,101,706)
Fair value reserve 8,235,780 6,048,357
Retained earnings 1,930,453 580,940
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company 113,776,560 109,197,956

Non-controlling interests 5,314,245 43,537,893
Total equity 119,090,805 152,735,849
Total liabilities and equity 154,613,826 191,609,939

(&

Tassem Hasan Zainal
Vice chairman and CEO

The notes set out on pages 12 to 64 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statenents.
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Arzan Fina;:ci‘:ﬂ Group for Financing and investment - KPSC 7

and its Subsidiaries

Consoiidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Consolidated statement of financial position

Notes 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 7,805,543 10,103,929
Instalment credit debtors 13 8,931,619 11,118,653
Investmenis at fair value through profit or loss 14 7,905,472 6,814,873
Accounts receivable and other assets 15 4,944,621 5,821,949
Due from related parties 33 191,306 1,104,711
Properties held for trading 16 1,327,865 1,313,947
Available for sale investments 17 86,466,759 98,812,690
Investment in associates 18 28,178,561 47,347,791
Investment in real estate under development 19 4,120,080 4,180,940
Investment properties 20 1,713,944 1,772,684
Property and equipment 21 3,028,056 3,217,772
Total assets 154,613,826 191,609,939
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 22 5,226,027 3,847,752
Accounts payable and other liabilities 23 6,244,242 7,092,993
Due to related parties 33 1,230,500 191,888
Term loans 24 16,380,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable 25 5,267,067 8,085,878
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 1,175,185 925,579
Total liabilities 35,523,021 38,874,090
Equity
Share capital 26 80,288,256 80,288,256
Share premium 26 23,803,273 23,803,273
Treasury shares 27 (559,232) (559,232)
Legal reserve 28 246,687 69,034
\oluntary reserve 28 246,687 69,034
Foreign currency translation reserve (415,344) (1,101,708)
Fair value reserve 8,235,780 6,048,357
Retained earnings 1,930,453 580,940
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company 113,776,560 109,197,956

Non-controlling interests 5,314,245 43,537,893
Total equity 119,090,805 152,735,849
Total liabilities and equity 154,613,826 191,609,939

(@

Tassem Hasan Zainal
Vice chairman and CEO

The notes set ont on pages 12 to 64 _form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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and its Subsidiaries

Consoclidated Financial Statements

31 Pecember 2047

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2017 216 *
KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 2,181,270 2,596,444
Adjustments:
Interest income (709,065} {b03,777)
Dividend income 8 {1,966,989) (2,138,708)
Impairment of available for sale investments 17 77,105 1,221,913
Impairment of investment in real estate under development 83,850 134,161
(L.oss)/gain on sale of available for sale investments 48,214 {15,688)
Gain on sale of properties held for trading (17,440) -
Reversal of provision for properties held for trading {120,561) -
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries (76,216) -
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 46,909 -
Share of results of associates 18 (477,402) (437,419)
Provision for instalment credit debtors 475,148 288,524
Finance costs 1,712,668 1,432,404
Depreciation 446,896 293,562
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 266,152 285,556
1,940,539 3,156,972

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Instalment credit debtors 1,711,886 2,087,564
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (1,080,600 (94,599)
Accounts receivable and other assets {1,792,427) (628,000)
Due from / to related parties 881,444 {695,353)
Accounts payable and other liabilities 26,452 214,379
Employees' end of service benefits paid (14,841) (88 ,645)
Net cash from continuing operations 1,662,453 3,952,318
Net cash from/(used in) discontinued operations 127,260 (198,567)
Net cash from operating activities 1,789,713 3,753,751
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 21 {196,725) {139,708)
Purchase of available for sale investments 17 {11,548,027) {27,760,164)
Praceeds from sale of available for sale investments 8,589,006 19,810,065
Proceeds from sale of properties held for trading 124,083 -
Proceeds from kiquidation of subsidiaries 1,551,448 -
Additions on real estate portfolio {22,990) (206,451)
Dividend income received 1,966,989 2,138,708
Dividend from associates 18 707,512 693,067
Interest income received 320,599 803,777
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 1,491,895 (4,960,708}

* Amount shown here do not correspond with the previously reported consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 as a result of adjustments made for discontinued operations as detailed in

Note 6.

The notes set out on pages 12 to 64 _form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 3 Dec.
Notes 2047 2016 *
KD KD

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in due to banks 1,378,274 2,185,851
Net increase in term loans (2,350,000) 5,960,000
Murabaha repaid {2,818,811) (2,737,660)
Payments from acquisition of partial interests in subsidiaries - (200,479)
Finance costs paid {1,712,6868) (1,432,404)
Net cash {(used in)/from financing activities {5,503,205) 3,775,308
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,221,597) 2,568,353
Foreign currency adjustment (76,789) (36,494)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12 10,103,929 7,307,640
Cash and cash equivalents included in disposal group - 264,430
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of the year 12 7,805,543 10,103,929
Non-cash transaction:
Accounts receivable and other assets (2,669,755} -
Due from/to related parties {1,070,574) (164,074)
Accounts payables and other liabilities 875,202 935,088

* Amount shown here do not cotrespond with the previously reported consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 as a result of adjustments made for discontinued operations as detailed in

Note 6.

The notes set out on pages 12 10 64 form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterients.
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC 12
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Iavestment - KPSC (the “parent company”) was incorporated in
Kuwait on 15 April 1980 in accordance with the Companies Law under the name of International Transport
Equipment Company — KSC (Closed). On 14 December 1996 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to
change the name of the parent company to International Murabaha Company — KSC (Closed). Later, on 24
April 2002 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to change the name of the parent company to
International Finance Company — KPSC and to expand its permitted activities.

The extraordinary general assembly held on 24 July 2013 approved to change the name of the parent company
from Intetnational Finance Company — KSCC to Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment — KPSC
which has been registered in the commercial register under No. 29629 on 11 November 2013.

The parent company is listed on the I uwait Stock Exchange and is governed under the directives of Central
Bank of Kuwait and Capital Markets Authotity.

The group comprises the parent company and its subsidiaries (together referred as “the group™).
The details of the subsidiaries are noted in note (6).
The patent company’s objectives are as follows:

- Investin various economic sectors through the incorporation or participation in the incorporation of
various companies or institutions practicing similar or complementary activities to the company’s
objectives for its account and for the account of third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Manage local or foreign various companies and institutions and market the investment services and
products owned by them or by third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Own and acquire the right of disposal of whatever it deems necessary thereto of movable and
immovable property or any parts thereof or any franchising rights the company deems they are
necessary ot appropriate to the nature of its activity or to the development of its funds, excluding
trading in goods for its account.

- Conduct all business related to securities trading for its account and for the account of third patties
inside or outside the State of Kuwait, including sale, purchase and marketing of securities of shares and
sukulks and other securities issued by local and foreign government and private companies, institutions
and bodies and practice the related financial mediation and brokerage activities.

- Manage the funds of individuals and local or foreign public and private companies, institutions and
bodies and invest these funds in various economic sectots through investment and real estate portfolios
inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Provide economic advice related to investment and hold courses, issue brochures of wvatious
investment activities for individuals, local and foreign companies and institutions.

- Prepare and provide technical, economic and assessment studies and consultations and prepare
feasibility studies for various investment activities and other studies, examining the technical, financial
and administrative aspects related to these activities for its account or for the account of third parties
inside or outside the State of Kuwait.
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and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 incorporation and activities (continued)

- Establish and manage the collective investment systems and local and foreign investment funds of all
kinds and contribute to their establishment for the account of the company and for the account of
third parties in accordance with the regulating laws, rules and conditions specified by the competent
regulatory authorities; put its stakes ot units to subscription so that the company’s contributions to the
share capital of the collective investment system or the investment fund shall not be less than the
minimum limit specified by the regulatory authorities; sell or purchase stakes or units in the local or
foreign coliective investment systems or investment funds for its account and for the account of third
parties or market same, provided the necessary approvals are obtained from the competent regulatory
authorities; act as investment custodian, investment monitor and investment advisor in general for the
investment funds inside or outside the State of Kuwait in accordance with the regulating laws.

- Invest funds for its account and for the account of third parties in the various aspects of investment
inside or outside the State of Kuwait and acquite movable and immovable assets.

- Act as the issuance manager for the securities issued by the local and foreign government and private
companies, institutions and bodies and act as the subscription agent, listing advisor, investment
custodian and monitor, including publications management and commitments of subscription
operations management, receiving applications and covering subscription thereto.

- Perform all advisory services that help develop and strengthen the ability of financial and monetary
market in the State of Kuwait and meet its requiremnents within the limits of the law and the decisions
or instructions issued by the competent regulatory authorities (after obtaining the necessary approvals
from those authorities), provided this does not result in granting funding by the company in any way.

- Mediate in financing operations, structure and manage the financing atrangements of the local and
international companies, institutions, bodies and projects in the vatious economic sectors in
accordance with the rules and conditions specified by the competent regulatory authorities.

- Carry out all the works related to the activities for the arrangement and management of consolidation,
acquisition and separation operations for the local and foreign government and private companies,
institutions and bodies.

- Trade in transportation means and related heavy equipment.

- Finance the purchases of capital goods, durable and non-durable goods.

- Lease capital and durable goods.

- Grant short and medium term loans to natural and judicial persons.

- Perform real estate investment operations aiming at the management and development of residential
lands and building of residential and commercial units and complexes for the purpose of selling them
in cash ot on installments or leasing same.

- Manage all kinds of financial portfolios, invest and develop funds by employing them locally and
internationally for the account of the company o for the account of its clients, in addition to lending
and botrowing operations.

- Mediate in the operations of lending, borrowing, brokerage and warrantees against commission ot pay.

- Finance and mediate in international and local trade operations.

- Manage and create mutual investment fonds according to the law and after approval by the competent
authorities.

- Mediate in investment in the international instruments and secugities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 incorporation and activities {continued)

- - Invest in teal estate, industrial and agricultural sectors and other economic sectors, whether directly or
through contribution to the incorporation of specialized companies or purchase of the shares of these
companies,

- Sell and purchase foreign currencies and trade in precious metals only for the account of the company.

- Conduct reseatches and studies for private and public real estate projects and for the employment of
funds for its account or for the account of third parties.

- Trade it securities such as shares and investment certificates and the like.

The company may have an interest or patticipate in any aspect with the companies, institutions and bodies
performing similar works or which might assist it in the achievement of its objectives in KKuwait or abroad. The
company may also open branches inside and outside the State of Kuwait in such a way that does not contradict
with the company’s law and the instructions of the competent regulatory authosities.

The address of the parent company’s registered office is PO Box 26442, Safat 13125, State of I{uwait,

The Parent company’s board of directors approved these consolidated financial statements for issue on 29
Match 2018. The general assembly of the parent company’s shareholders has the power to amend these
consolidated financial statements after issuance,

2 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the
IASB, as modified for use by the Government of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the
Central Bank of Kuwait. These regulations require adoption of all IFRSs except for the 1AS 39 requirement for
collective impairment provision, which has been replaced by the Central Bank of Kuwait requirement for a
minimum general provision of 1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non-cash facilities. These rates are to be
applied effective from 1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of certain restricted categoties of
collateral, during the reporting period.

3 Changes in accounting policies
31 New and amended standards adopted by the group

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
which have been adopted by the group. Information on these new standards is presented below:

Standard or Interpretation : Effective for annual periods beginning
TAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments 1 January 2017
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 1 January 2017

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments

The Amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided to users of financial statements
about changes in an entity’s debt and related cash flows (and noncash changes)
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31 December 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

ITAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments (continued)
The Amendments:
s require an entity to provide disclosutes that enable users to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. An entity applies its judgement when determining the exact form and content of
the disclosures needed to satisfy this requirement

o suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary in order to satisfy the above
requirement, including:

o changes in liabilities atising from financing activities caused by changes in financing cash flows,
foreign exchange rates or fair values, ot obtaining or losing control of subsidiaties oz other
businesses

o a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of Habilities arising from financing
activities in the statement of financial position including those changes identified immediately
above.

The group’s liabilities arising from financing activities comprise of due to banks, tetm loans and murabaha
payables (notes 22, 24 and 25). A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in Note 29 Apart from these additional disclosures the application of the amendments did not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 12 - Clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that its disclosure requirements (except
for those in IFRS 12. B10-B16) apply to an entty's interests in a subsidiary, joint venture or an associate
irrespective of whether they are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale or
as discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.

The application of the amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
group as none of the group entities are classified as, or included in disposal group that is classified as held for
sale.

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, ammendments and
interpretations to existing standards have beea published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted eatly by the group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the group’s consolidated financial
statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but ate not
expected to have a matetial impact on the group’s consolidated financial information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments (continued)
The Amendments:
s require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users to evaluate changes in liabilities atising from
financing activities, An entity applies its judgement when determining the exact form and content of
the disclosures needed to satisfy this requirement

o suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary in order to satisfy the above
requirement, including:

o  changes in liabilities arising from financing activities caused by changes in financing cash flows,
foreign exchange rates ot fair values, or obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries ot other
businesses

o a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities in the statement of financial position including those changes identified immediately
above.

The group’s liabilities arising from financing activities comprise of due to banks, term loans and mutabaha
payables (notes 22, 24 and 25). A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in Note 29 Apart from these additional disclosures the application of the amendments did not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFPRS 12 - Clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that its disclosure requirements (except
for those in IFRS 12. B10-B16) apply to an entity's interests in a subsidiary, joint venture ot an associate
irrespective of whether they are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale or
as discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.

The application of the amendments did not have any itnpact on the consolidated financial statements of the
group as none of the group entities ate classified as, or included in disposal group that is classified as held for

sale,

3.2 IASB Standatds issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the TASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted eatly by the group.

Management anticipates that ali of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that ase expected to be relevant to the group’s consolidated financial
statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3.2 IASB Standatds issued but not yet effective (continued)

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annual periods beginning

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets betweenn and an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments No stated date
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 Jasary 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 Janwary 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments 1 January 2018
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 1 January 2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:
¢ require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)
*  require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute z business, i.e. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors® interests in that associate or
joint venture.

These requitements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the asscts themselves.

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, early
implementation is allowed. Management anticipates that the application of these amendments may have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactions arise.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The IASB published IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments® {2014), representing the completion of its project to replace
IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The new standard introduces extensive changes
to TAS 39’ guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces a new ‘expected
credit loss” model for the impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also provides new guidance on the application
of hedge accounting.

The main areas of expected impact are as follows:
¢ the classification and measurement of the financial assets based on the new criteria that considers the
assets’ conteactual cash flows and the business model in which they are managed.
e an expected credit loss-based impairment will need to be recognised on the trade receivables and
investments in debt-type assets cutrently classified as available for sale and held-to-maturity, unless
classified as at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the new criteria.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective {continued)
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o it will no longer be possible to measure equity investments at cost less impairment and all such
investments will instead be measured at fair value. Changes in fair value will be presented in profit or
loss unless an itrevocable designation is made to present them in other comprehensive income.

o if the fair value option continues to be elected for certain financial liabilities, fair value movements will
be presented in other comprehensive income to the extent those changes relate to own credit risk.

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL). The
standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for
sale.

Purther, the gains and losses on subsequent measurement of debt type financial instruments measured at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) will be recognised in equity and will be recycled to
profit or loss on derecognition or reclassification.

However, gains or losses on subsequent measurement of equity type financial assets measured at FVOCI will
be recognised in equity and not recycled to profit or loss on derecognition. Dividend income on these assets
will continue to be recognised in profit or loss.

Based on the analysis of the group’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and of the
circumstances that existed at that date, management of the group have determined the impact of
implementation of IFRS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the group as follows:

Classification and measurement:

Equity investments are to be measured at FVIPL as well as FVTOCI as certain existing investments in equity
instruments qualify for designation as FVTOCI category. The gains and losses on these investments will no
longer be recycled to statement of profit or loss on subsequent measurement or on derecognition. Further,
these investments are no longer subject to impairment test.

No material impact on the net equity balance of the group is expected as a result of the reclassification of the
equity investments.

Loans as well as trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash
flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. Management analysed the contractual cash flow
characteristics of those instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost measutrement
under IFRS 9. Therefore, reclassification for these instruments is not required.

There is no impact on the financial liabilities of the group and will continue to be measured at amortised cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Tmpairment: _

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all of its instalment credit loans and trade
receivables. Instalment credit debtors are subject to the minimum provisioning requirements of the Central
Bank of Kuwait. Management believes that the impairment allowance for the instalment credit debtors under
the CBK requirements exceed the requirements of IFRS 9.

The group expects to apply simplified approach to impairment for accounts receivable and due from related
patties as required or permitted under the standatd.

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of this approach and does not expect any material
impact to the consolidated financial statements from applying this simplified approach.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 “Revenues”, IAS 11 “Construction Contract” and several revenue — related
Interpretations and provides a new control-based revenue recognition model using five-step approach to all
contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:
¢ Identify the contract with the customer
Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Detetmine the transaction price
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The standard includes important guidance, such as
¢ Contracts involving the delivery of two or more goods or services — when to account sepatately for
the individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the
transaction price, and when to combine contracts
»  Timing — whether revenue is required to be recognized over time ot at a single point in time
*  Variable pricing and credit risk — addressing how to treat arrangements with vatiable or contingent
(e.g. performance-based) pricing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue
¢ Time value — when to adjust a contract price for a financing component
e Specific issues, including —
o non-cash consideration and asset exchanges
contract costs
rights of return and other customer options
supplier repurchase options
warranties
principal versus agent
licencing
breakage
non-refundable upfront fees, and
consignment and bill-and-hold arrangements.

0O 0 CcC 00 0000
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Comtracts with Customers (continued)

The Group has assessed the impact of IFRS 15. Based on this assessment adoption of IFRS 15 ate not expected
to have any matetial effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 will replace TAS 17 and three related Interpretations. Leases will be recorded on the statement of
financial position in the form of 2 right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

Management is yet to fully assess the impact of the Standard and therefore is unable to provide quantified
information. However, in order to determine the impact, management is in the process of:
* performing a full review of all agreements to assess whether any additional contracts will now become
a lease under IFRS 16’ new definition
e deciding which transitional provision to adopt; cither full retrospective application or partial
retrospective application (which means comparatives do not need to be restated). The partial
application method also provides optional relief from reassessing whether contracts in place are, ot
contain, a lease, as well as other reliefs. Deciding which of these practical expedients to adopt is
important as they are one-off choices
* assessing their current disclosures for finance and operating leases as these are likely to form the basis
of the amounts to be capitalised and become right-of-use assets
* determining which optional accounting simplifications apply to their lease portfolio and if they are
going to use these exemptions
*  assessing the additional disclosures that will be required.

IFRS 40 Investment Property - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 40 clarifies that transfers to, or from, investment property are required when, and
only when, there is a change in use of property supported by evidence. The amendments also re-characterise
the list of circumstances appeating in paragraph 57(a)--(d) as a non-exhaustive list of examples of evidence that
a change in use has occurred. The Board has also clarified that a change in management’s intent, by itself, does
not provide sufficient evidence that a change in use has occurred. Evidence of a change in use must be
obsetvable.

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to LAS 28 - Clarifies that a qualifying entity is able to choose between applying the equity method
ot measuring an investment in an associate or joint venture at fair value through profit ot loss, separately for
each associate or joint venture at initial recogniton of the associate or joint venture. Amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies {continued)
3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretations looks at what exchange rate to use for translation when payments are made or received in
advance of the related asset, expense or income. A diversity was obsetved in practice in circumstances in which
an entity recognises a non-monetary liability arising from advance considesation. The diversity resulted from
the fact that some entities were recognising revenue using the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt of
the advance consideration while others were using the spot exchange rate at the date that revenue was
recognized. IFRIC 22 addresses this issue by clarifying that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income {or part of
it) is the date on which an entity initally recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the payment of receipt of advance consideration.

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated finaacial statements.

4 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

4.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are preseated in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”) which is the functional
currency of the patent company and are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
investments at fair value through profit or loss 2nd available for sale investments that are measured at fair value.

The group has elected to present the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” in two
statements: the “statement of profit ot loss” and “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income™.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returas from its involvement with the
subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates which are typically not more than three months
from that of the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the effect of
any significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the parent
company’s financial statements.

All transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unreatised
gains and losses on transactions between group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the undetlying asset is also tested for impairment from a group perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted whete necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of duting the year are
recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.2 Basis of consolidation {continued)

Non-controlling intetests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the group. The group attributes total comprehensive income ot loss of subsidiaries
between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective ownership
interests.

When a controlling interest in the subsidiaries is disposed of, the difference between the selling ptice and the
net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

4.3 Business combinations

The group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The considetation
transferred by the group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or lability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the propottionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s pteviously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements ptiot to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabitities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, econotmic circumstances and pettinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquitee.

Gooduwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the
sum of a} fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non controlling interest in
the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquitee, over the acquisition-
date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum caleulated
above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase} is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
ot loss immediately.

4.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

4.5 Revenue tecognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made.

Revenue arises from rendering of services and is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration
received or receivable, excluding taxes, rebates, and trade discounts. The group applies the tevenue recognition
criteria set out below to each separately identifiable component of revenue.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.5 Revenue recognition {continued)

4.5.1 Income from instalment credit debtors

Interest on instalment credit facilities is calculated at the time of a contract with the customer. The customer
repays the total amount due {including interest) by equal instalments over the period of the contract. The
interest i1s allocated over the life of the agreement using the “effective interest” method. Interest relating to
outstanding instalments is considered as deferred income and is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a deduction from instalment credit debtors.

4.5.2 Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

4.5.3 Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the rental contracts.

4.54  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

4.5.5 Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement transactions
for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party
are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

4.6 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or
at the date of their origin.

4.7 Finance costs
Finance costs ate recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding balance of
botrowing payable and applicable interest rate.

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Capitalisation of finance costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are complete. Other finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

4.8 Taxation

4.8.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the shareholders of the parent company. As per law,
income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from lsted companies which are subjected to NLST
have to be deducted from the profit for the year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)
4.8 Taxation (continued)

4.8.2 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The conttibution to IKFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company in accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors’
resolution, which states that income from associates and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’ remuneration,
transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the contribution.

4.8.3 Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the group attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company in accotdance with the Ministty of Finance tesolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10
December 2007.

Under the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carty forward of losses to the future years or any catrry back to prior
years is permitted.

4.9 Segment reporting

The group has four operating segments: instalment credit, investments, financial brokerage and real estate, In
identifying these opetating segments, management generally follows the group’s service lines representing its
main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different
approaches and other resources. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

For management purposes, the group uses the same measutement policies as those used in its financial
staternents. In addition, assets ot liabilittes which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segmment are not allocated to a segment.

4,10  Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The group’s investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, ie. on the
statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the
associate, less any impairment and the consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the group’s share of the
results of operations of associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwiil.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impattment as past
of that investment. Any excess of the parent company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit ot loss,

Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the
cartying amount may also be necessary for changes in the group’s share in the associate arising from changes
in the associate’s equity. Changes in the group’s share in associate’s equity are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4,10  Investment in associate (continued)

When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations ot
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions with associate are eliminated to the extent of the group’s share in the associate.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment in the asset
transferted.

An assessment for impairment of investment in associates is performed when there is an indication that the
asset has been impaired, or that impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist.

The associate’s financial statements are prepared either to the parent company’s reporting date ot to a date not
eatlier than three months of the parent company’s reporting date using consistent accounting policies. Where
practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of significant transactions or other events that occurred
between the reporting date of the assoclates and the parent company’s reporting date.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the group measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

411 Financial instruments

4.11.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a patty to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are desctibed below.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a patt of financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
. rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;
. the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party undet a
‘pass through’ arrangement and either
(a}  the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b)  the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- through
arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the group’s continuing involvement
in the asset.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4,11  Financial instruments {continued)

4.11.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
casrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon
mitial recognition:

* loans and receivables
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTIPL)
* available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

All financial assets except for those at FVIPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired, Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are
described below.

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted whete the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Individually significant reccivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective evidence is feceived that a specific counterparty will default. Receivabies that are not considered to
be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by reference to the
industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impatrment loss estitnate
is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

The group categorises loans and receivables into following categoties:

- Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and other financial institutions and
short term deposits due within three months which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes i value.

- Instalment credit debtors

Instalment credit debtors are stated in the consolidated financial position at amortised cost, net of specific and
general provisions. Specific provisions are made to reduce impaired receivables to their estimated recoverable
amount and general provisions are made at a tate of 1% on instalment credit debtors for which no specific
provisions were made, to provide for losses known from experience to exist, but not yet specifically identifiable,
in accordance with the Central Bank of IKuwait instructions in that respect. The recoverable amounts are based
on estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate on a portfolio basis for groups

of similar debtors.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.11  Financial instruments (continued)
4.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

- Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets are stated at original amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable, Bad debts
are written off as ncurred

= Dug from related parties
Due from telated parties are financial assets originated by the gtoup by providing money ditectly to the
botrrower that have fixed or determinable payments and are pot quoted in an active market.

» Financial assets at FVIPL

Classification of investments as financial assets at FVTPL depends on how management monitors the
performance of these investments. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily available
reliabie fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the management accounts, they are classified as designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition, All derivative
financial instruments fall into this category.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit ot loss. The fair values of financial assets in this categoty are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using 2 valuation technique where no active market exists.

J AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this categoty or do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets
are measured at fair value, Gains and losses ate recognised in other comprehensive income and reported within
the fair value reserve within equity, except for impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on monetary
assets, which are recognised in statement of profit or loss. When the asset is disposed of or is detezmined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity
reserve Lo consolidated statement of profit or loss and presented as a reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income.

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset available for
sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and ‘prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from other comptehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for financial assets that
are debt securities which arc recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss only if the reversal can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.




R LR LR R R R R R A M e A B W oW OB B oW B oo oo o o By 2

1

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and investment - KPS0 27
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
411  Financial instruments (continued)

4.11.3 Classification and subsequent measurcrment of financial l{abilities
The group’s financial liabilities include due to banks, accounts payable and other Habilities, due to related parties,
term loans and murabaha payable.

The subsequent measurement of financial Habilities depends on their classification as follows:

. Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss
These are stated using effective interest rate method. Due to banks, accounts payable and other liabilities, due
to related parties, term loans and murabaha payable are classified as financial liabilities other than at FVTPL.

Term loans and due to banks

All term loans and due to banks are subsequently measured at amottised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (FIR) amortisation process.

Payables and other liabilities
Payables and other Habilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed or not.

Due to reluted parties
Due to related parties are financial liabilities arising in the normal courses of the business and are not quoted
in an active market.

Murababa payable

Murabaha payable represents amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under
murabaha arrangements. Murabaha payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of defetred finance
cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing rate
attributable and the balance outstanding,

All the profit-related charges are included within finance costs.

4.12  Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The caleulation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate.

4.13  Trade and scttlement date accounting

All *regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets ate recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases ot sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

4,14  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settte the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.15 Fair value of financial instruments

The Fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
veference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial insttuments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation
models.

4.16  Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at ezch financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset ot 2 group of financial assets may be impaired, If such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment is determined as follows:

f)  Tor assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value;

H) Tor assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present value of
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset; and

i) For assets carried at amortised cost, impaitment is the difference between carrying amount and the
present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the
impairment losses recognised for the financial asset no longer exist or have decreased and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. Except for reversal of impairment
losses related to equity instruments classified as available for sale, all other impairment reversals ate recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date. Impairment reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available
for sale are recognised in fair value reserve. '

4,17  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there arve laggely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is aliocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within
the group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually.

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Animpairment foss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to selt and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary
to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such
as market and asset-specific risks factors.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.17  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying arnount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-gencrating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment chatge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

4,18  Properties held for trading

Properties held for trading are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses
incurred in bringing each property to its present condition including identifiable finance cost. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on completion and
disposal.

4.19  Investment properties

Investment propetties are propetties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and ate accounted for
using the cost model. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, being the purchase price and any
directly attributable expenditure for a purchased investment property and cost at the date when construction
or development is complete for a self-consteucted investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impatrment losses. Gains and losses arising from the sale of investment properties are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The estimated useful life for the calculation of depreciation, excluding land, is 25 years using straight line
method. The carrying amounts are reviewed at each reporting date on an individual basis to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Provision for impairment losses, if any, are made where
carrying values exceed the recoverable amount.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change
in use.

420  Property and equipment
Land is stated at cost less any impairment losses based upon the reports of independent professional valuers,

Capital expenditure on assets in the course of construction are classified as assets under construction. Such
costs are subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss if the project is abandoned, or, if
the project is, completed, are capitalised and transferred to the appropriate property and equipment category,
from which time depreciation is charged using the rate applicable to the category concerned. Interest incursed
on funds specifically obtained to finance construction activities arc capitalised using the actual interest rate
incurred during construction.

Other property and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, The group depreciates
these assets using the straight-line method at rates estimated to fully depreciate the cost of the property and
equipment over their expected useful lives.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)

4.20  Property and equipment (continued)

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from items of property. In
the case of leasehold property, expected useful lives are determined by reference to comparable owned assets
or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually.
When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and
any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

421  Impairment testing of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s catrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessaty
to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors ate detetmined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such
as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill aliocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its cartying amount.

4.22  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as 2 result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resoutces will be required from the group and amounts can
be estimated reliably, Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present abligation. Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement 1s determined by considering the class of obligations as 2 whole. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated staterent of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

4.23  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with
the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Legal and voluntary reserves comptise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies’ Law and the parent company’s memorandum of incorporation and articles
of assoctation, as amended.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.23  Equity, reserves and dividend payments (continued)
Other components of equity include the following:
- Foreign currency translation reserve — comprises foreign currency translation differences atising from the
translation of financial statements of the group’s foreign entities into KD.
~ Pair value reserve — comprises valuation gains and losses relating to available for sale financial assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits and losses.
All transactions with ownets are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to shareholders ate included in other liabilities when the dividends have been
approved in a general meeting.

4.24  Treasury shatres

Treasury shares consist of the parent company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the group and
not yet reissued or cancelled. Treasury shares are accounted for under cost method. Under this method, the
weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. Treasury shares are not
entitled to cash dividends that the group may distribute. The issue of stock dividend shares increases the
number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total
cost of treasury shares.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are recorded directly in “treasury shares reserve” in the
shareholders’ equity. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on
that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary resetve and legal reserve,
Subsequent to this, should profits arise from sale of treasury shares an amount is transferred to reserves and
retained earnings equal to the loss previously charged to this account.

4.25  Related parties transactions

Related patties are associates, major sharcholders, board of directors, executive staff, their family members and
the companies owned by them. All related party transactions are cartied out with the approval of the group’s
management.

4.26  End of service benefits ‘

"The group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of 2 minimum service period in accordance
with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a
result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

4.27  Foreign currency translation

4.27.1 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (IKDD), which is also the
functional currency of the parent company. Hach entity in the group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)

4.27.2 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchanpe rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetaty items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

4.27.3 Foreign operations

In the group’s financial statements, ali assets, liabilities and transactions of group entities with a functional
currency other than the KID are translated into KID upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities
in the group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KD at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been
translated into I<ID at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to
other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

4.28  Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the group and accordingly ate not
included in these consolidated financial statements.

5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting petiod. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requite a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected in future petiods.

5.1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

5.1.1  Classification of financial instruments
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at
acquisition.

The group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primariy for the purpose of short
terrn profit making,
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
51 Significant management judgments (continued)

5.1.1  Classification of financial instruments (continued)

Classification of financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitors
the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily
available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management
accounts, they are classified as designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable payments
the financial asset is classified as loans and receivables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.

5.1.2  Fair valucs of assets and liabilities acquired
The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as a result of business
combination requires significant judgement.

5.1.3 Control assessment

When determining control, management considets whether the group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities
and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable judgement.

5.2 Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

5.2,1 Impairment of assets with definite lives

At the financial position date, the group’s management assesses, whether there is any indication that assets with
definite lives may be impaired. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the “value in use”
method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the estimated useful life of the asset.

5.2.2 Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss on the group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss.

5.2.3 Impaianent of available for sale investments

The group treats available for sale investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment.
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
5.2 Estimates uncertainty {continued)

5.2.4 Impairment of receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

5.2.5 Classification of real estate property
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as ttading, property
held for development or investment property.

The group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the intention of development.

The group classifies propetty as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

5.2.6  Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change
the utility of certain software and equipment.

5.2.7 Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a business
combination. Particularly, the fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many
variables that affect future profitability.

5.2.8  Fair value of financial instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This requires management to develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of
financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at
the reporting date.

5.2.9 Significant influence
Significant influence exists when the size of an entity’s own voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
other vote holdets, give the entity the practical ability unilaterally to direct the relevant activities of the company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries
8.1 Composition of the group

Set out below are details of subsidiaries held directly by the group:

Voting capital held Place of Principal
Company name as at 31 December incorporation activities Repoeriing date
2017 2016 ’
Al-Addan Real Estate Co. — SPC 100% 100% Kuwait Trading in all real 31 December 2017
estate activities
Arzan CC for Collection Co. — SPC 100% 100% Kuwait Trading in real 31 December 2017
estate activities and
collecting money on
behalf of others
Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co.— WLL 51% 51% Kuwait Real estate services 31 December 2017
international Finance Company ~ SAL 100% 100% Lebanon Finance services 30 September 2017
including financing,
management and
brokerage
IFA Securities Brokerage Co.- SAE 84.55% 84.55% Egypt Brokerage services 30 September 2017
International Financial Advisers 65.20% 65.20% Jordan Brokerage services 30 September 2017
Company — WLL.
Saudi Invest Real Estate Co. -~ WLL 100% 100% Saudi Arabia Real estate services 31 December 2017
Arzan Wealth (DIFC) Co. Limited 100% 100% United Arab Financial advisory 30 September 2017
Emirates services
Arzan VC for Projects Management — 99% 99% Kuwait Projects 31 December 2017
WLL management
Arzan VC | Lid. 100% 100% United Arab Projects 31 December 2017
Emirates management
Hilltop 1 UK Limited (8.2.1) - 6.61% United Real estaie 30 September 2017
Kingdom
Hilltop 3 UK Limited (6.2.2) - 17.52% United Real estate 30 September 2017
Kingdom
Hilltop 4 UK Limited (6.2.2) - 9.95% United Real estate 30 September 2017
Kingdom
Hilltop 5 UK Limited (6.2.2) - 35.98% United Real estate 30 September 2017
Kingdom
Hilltop Norway Limited (6.2.1) - 9.86% Norway Real estate 30 September 2017
Hitttop Germany Limited (6.2.1) . 7.66% Germany Real estale 30 September 2017
HI Eguity Company Lid. 99.29% 99.29% Cayman Real estate 30 September 2017
Isiands
Ht Debt Company Ltd. 99.29% 99.29% Cayman Real estate 30 September 2017
Islands
Arzan Capital 100% 100% United Arab Holding Company 30 September 2017
Emirates
Arzan AM Limited 100% 100% United Arab General Trading 31 December 2017
Emirates
Arzan Real Estate Co. — SAE* 80% - Egypt Real estate 30 September 2017

Durmg the yeat, the group established a new subsidiary under the name of Arzan Real Estate Comp'my SAE,
in Egypt with investment in share capital of EGP 63,800 (equivalent to KDD1,076) representing ifs 80%

ownership interest in the subsidiary.




B & & O @ B O W W O M W R N N B S S B e e R W W R ma e e s

13

Arzan Financial Grougp for Financing and Investment - KP3G 36
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Becember 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Discontinned aperations

6.2.1  Liguidation of subsidiaries
During the year, the Group liquidated the subsidiaties Hilltop 1 UK Limited, Hilltop Notway Limited and
Hilltop Germany Limited for a total aggregate consideration of KI)1,551,448 resulting into a gain of KI>76,216.

At the date of liquidation, the carrying amounts of subsidiaries’ net assets and its operating results up to the
date of liquidation were as follows:

Hilltop 1 UK Hilttop Norway Hilltop Germany
Limited Limited Limited Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2017 2017 2017 2017
KD KD KD KD
Total assets 3,035,581 7,746,562 7,853,993 18,636,136
Total liabifities 37,678 481,516 535,225 1,054,419
Net assets as at date of liguidation 2,907,903 7,265,046 7,318,768 17,581,717
Share of net assets on liquidation 198,281 716,333 560,618 1,475,232
Sale proceeds 214,523 758,444 578,484 1,651,448
Galn on liguidation 16,242 42,111 17,863 76,216
Hilltop 1 UK Hilltop Norway  Hilltop Germany
Limited Limited Limited Total Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 31 Dec,
2017 2017 2017 2017 20186
KD KD KD KD Total
Revenue 73,618 327,070 288,671 689,359 934,543
Expenses {1,588) (3,174) (3,133} (7,895} (18,218)
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 72,030 323,896 285,538 681,464 916,325
Hilltop 1 UK Hilltop Norway  Hilltop Germany
Limited Limited Limited Total Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 31 Dec.
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
KD KD KD KD Total
Operating activities 104,466 3,516 1,625 108,507 (434,661)
Investing activities (104,038) - - (104,038) 412,396
428 3,518 1,525 5,469 (22,265)

6.2.2  Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

In prior periods and as a result of contractual agreements with other investors in Hilltop 3 UK Limited, Hilltop
4 UK Limited and Hilltop 5 UK Limited, the group controlled these entities through ownership of class “A”
shates in the respective subsidiaries which allowed the group to exercises majority voting rights. Duting the
year the group waived its ownership along with all related rights in class “A” shares its those investees to an
independent trust. Accordingly, the group’s control over these subsidiaties was lost. Therefote, the group
reclassified these investments to available for sale investments. The reclassification resulted into a loss of

KID46,009.

At the date of disposal, the carrying amounts of the above subsidiaries’ assets and its operating results up to
date of disposal were as follows:
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Discontinued operations (continued)
6.2.2  Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (continsed)
Hilltop 3 UK Hilltop 4 UK Hilltop 5 UK
Limited Limited Limited Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2017 2017 2017 2017
KD KD KD KD
Total assets 10,223,971 7,937,581 9,282,791 27,444,343
Total liabilities 40,783 - 191,591 232,374
Net assets as at date of disposal 10,183,188 7,837,581 9,01,200 27,211,969
Share of net assets disposed 1,784,883 825,361 3,271,014 5,881,258
Fair value of consideration (available for
sale investment) 1,558,320 1,005,014 3,271,014 5,834,348
{Loss)/gain on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (226,562) 179,653 - (46,909)
Hilttop 3 UK Hilitop 4 UK Hiiltop 5 UK
Limited Limited Limited Total Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 31 Dec.
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
KD KD KD KD Total
Revenue (152,140) 567,506 36 415,402 1,442,119
Expenses {5,346) {7,418) (120,379) {133,140) (16,247)
{Loss)/profit for the year
from discontinued
operation {157,486) 560,091 (120,343) 282,262 1,425,872

Cash flows generated from discontinued opetations for the reporting periods under review are as follows:

Hilitop 3 UK Hifltop 4 UK Hilltop § UK
Limited Limited Limited Total Total
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 31 Dec.

2017 2017 2017 2017 2016

KD KD KD KD Total
Operating activities (40,897) 502,500 443,454 905,067 {2,377,125)
Investing activities 175,320 {508,015} (450,571) {783,266) 2,200,823
134,423 {5,515} (7,117} 121,71 {176,302)

6.3 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interesis:

The group includes the following subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (NCI):
Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights

Name held by the NCI Results allocated to NC1 Accumulated NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
% % KD KD KD KD
Kuwait Invest Reai Estate Co. — WLL 48 49 (525,048)  (180,332) 4,638,471 5112285
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries (continued)

6.3 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests: (continsed)

Summatised financial information for subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests, befote intergroup

elimination s set out below:

a) Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co. — WLL
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Non-current assets 9,501,522 10,452,955
Current assets 7,426 7,522
Total assets 9,508,948 10,460,477
Current liabilities 42,681 27,243
Total liabilities 42,681 27,243
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 4,827,797 5,320,949
Naon-controlling interests 4,638,471 5,112,285
Total equity 9,466,268 10,433,234
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2047 2016
KD KD
Revenue (337,713} {355,660
Expenses and other charges (733,813) (12,364)
Loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company (546,478) (187,692)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI (525,048) (180,332
Loss for the year {1,071,526} (368,024)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company (483,153) (187,692)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to NCI (473,814) {180,332}
Total comprehensive loss for the year (966,967) (368,024)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Net cash flow from operating activities (98) -
Net cash outflows (96) -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7 Income from instalment credit debtors
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
Kb KD
Interest income from instalment credit 892,153 929,589
Discount, commission and fees 387,287 329,804
Recovery of written off balances 386,552 622,682
1,665,992 1,882,075
8 Dividend income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2018
KD KD
From;
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 229,897 201,115
Available for sale investments 1,737,092 1,937,593
1,966,989 2,138,708

9 Finance costs

Finance costs relate to the group’s borrowing activities including amounts due to banks, term loans and

murabaha payable.

10 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

excluding treasury shares.

The parent company had no outstanding dilutive potential shares,

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent company from
continuing operations (KD} 1,695,515 412 287
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent company from
discontinued operations (KD) 46,266 259,130
1,741,781 671417
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (excluding
treasury shares) — shares 796,798,664 796,798,664
Basic and dijuted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders
of the parent company - Fils
- From continuing operations 2,128 0.518
- From discontinued operations 0.058 0.325
Total {Fils) 2.186 0.843
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11 Net gain on financial assets
Net gain on financial assets, analysed by categoty, is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2047 2016
KD KD
Cash and cash eguivalents 709,085 503,777
Instalments credit debtors 1,190,844 1,593,551
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 744,649 201,118
Available for sale investments 1,614,773 731,368
Net realised and unrealised gain 4,256,331 3,029814
Net unrealised loss recognised directly in equity 2,238,657 495,687
6,494,988 3,525,601
12 Cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2018
KD KD
Cash and bank bhalances 4,607,292 6,536,799
Term deposits — 1 to 3 months 3,198,251 3,567,130
7,805,543 10,103,929

The term deposits catry effective interest rate of 1.35% (31 December 2016: 1.35%) per annum.

13 Instalment credit debtors
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Gross instalment credit debtors 12,414,947 14,598,812
Deferred income (1,364,486) (1,603,010}
11,050,461 12,995,802
Specific provision for doubtful debts (2,000,048) (1,682,970}
Generat provision for doubtful debts {118,7%4) {194,179)
8,931,61¢ 11,118,653
Gross instalment credit debtors are repayable as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Within one year 3,221,459 4 516,642
More than a year 9,193,488 10,082,170
12,414,947 14,598,812
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13 instalment credit debtors (continued)
The effective annual interest rate carned on instaiment credit ranged from 2.5% to 8% per annum {31
December 2016: 2.5% to 8% per annum).

The movement in the provision for instalment credit debtors is as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Specific General Specific General
provision provision Total provision provision Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
Opening balance 1,682,970 194,178 1,877,149 1,361,267 219,950 1,581,217
Foreign currency
translation {18,627) {1,505} {20,132) 7,408 - 7,408
Write off {213,323} - (213,323} - - -
Charge for the year 472,245 2,903 475,148 288,524 - 288,524
Transfer 76,783 (76,783) - 25,771 (25,771) -
Closing balance 2,000,048 118,794 2,118,842 1,682,970 194,179 1,877,148

The provision for doubtful debts is in agreement, in all material respect, with the specific provision
requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwait and IERS. Furthermore, a general provision of 1% on instalment
credit balances, where no specific provision is made, is taken in accordance with the instructions of the Central

Bank of Kuwait.

Included within the gross instalment credit debtors is an amount of KD817,066 (31 December 2016:
KID308,514) in respect of related parties {note 33). This amount is secured by way of pledge of certain local
and foreign shares.

14 Investments at fair value through profit or loss
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD

Local quoted shares 881,892 830,399
Foreign quoted shares 61,013 54,268
Investments in managed portfolios 6,962,467 5,930,206

7,905,472 6,814,873

The investments in managed portfolios with faix value of K16,479,050 (31 December 2016: KID5,930,206) are
pledged against term loans {note 24).

The hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of investments at fair value through profit or loss
by valuations techniques is presented in Note 34.2.
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15 Accounts receivable and other assets
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD

Trade receivables 3,671,646 6,603,749
Provision for douhtful debts (1,491,723} {1,481,723)

2,079,923 5,112,026
Staff loans receivable 5,944 105
Prepayments and refundable deposits 19,651 59,716
Advance payments to purchase of available for sale investments 1,206,370 -
Other assets 1,632,733 650,102

4,944,621 5,821,949

16 Properties held for trading

Properties held for trading represent the group’s share of investments in properties outside Kuwait.

The movement in the ptoperties held for trading is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD

Balance at 1 January 1,834,714 1,934,714
Disposal during the year (135,369} -

1,799,345 1,934,714
Provision for properties held for trading (471,480) {620,767)
Balance at 31 December 1,327,865 1,313,947

As a result of impairment testing of the carrying value of the properties there was no indication that an
impaicment is required. The impaitment testing by management was based on fair value of the properties which
has been determined based on two valuations obtained from independent as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

17 Available for sale investments
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Local quoted shares 6,133,960 5,609,999
Local unguoted shares 12,734,773 0,642,221
Foreign unguoted shares 38,614,707 52,032,605
Investments in managed portfolios 30,790,517 31,317,258
Investment in managed funds 192,802 210,607
86,466,759 98,812,690
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17 Available for sale investments (continued)
The movement in the available for sale investments is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 98,812,690 91,573,129
Additions during the year 11,548,028 27,760,164
Sale during the year {8,623,010) {19,812,768}
Change in fair value 2,039,025 (707,835)
Arising on liguidation and loss of control of subsidiaries - net {17,309,974) -
Balance at 31 December 86,466,759 88,812,690

The unquoted investments include investments having a cacrying value of KID11,728,416 (31 December 2016:
KID37,680,555) stated at cost due to unavailability of reliable sources to determine theit fair values, Management
studies and cash flow expectations for these investments do not indicate any impairment for these investments.

Quoted and unquoted local shares and investments in managed portfolios with an aggregate carrying value of
KD35,953,779 (31 December 2016: KD44,814,770) are pledged against due to banks, term loans and murabaha
payable (notes 22, 24 and 25).

The investments in managed funds are carried at net asset value provided by the fund managers which represent
the best estimate of fair value available for these investments.

During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of KID77,105 (31 December 2016: K101,221,913) on
certain investments. Management is not aware of any factors which may indicate any further impairment for
the available for sale investments.

18 Investment in associates
18.1 The details of the group’s investment in associates are given below:
Percentage of
Country of ownership
incorporation 31 December Activity
2017 20186
% %
Offset Holding Co. - KSCC Kuwait 50.00 50.00 Brokerage
Al Wafir Marketing Services Co. - KSCC Kuwait 34.00 34.00 Real estate
Al Qula Slaughterhouse Co. - KSCC Kuwait 28.89 28.89 Services
Gulf Real Estate Co. - WLL Kuwait 20.13 20.13 Real estate
Hill Property Investment LP (note 6.1.1) United Kingdom . 84.32 Real estate
Suriees LP (note 6.1.2) United Kingdom - 96.96 Real estate
Hunt Property LP {note 6.1.2) United Kingdom - 97.84 Real estate

All associates are unquoted,
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and lnvasiment - BPBC 45
and its Subsidiaries

Lonsolidated Financial Statemenis

31 December 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18 Investment in associates (continued)

18.3 Set out below is the aggregate information for the individually immaterial associates,
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2018
KD KD
Aggregate share in associates’ assets and liabilities:
Assets 1,608,277 1,338,184
_Liabilities 196,340 (71,809)
1,411,937 1,266,375
Aggregate share in associates’ results:
Revenue 285,332 243,934
Profit for the year 217,791 141,693
Group’s share of total comprehensive income 217,791 141,693
Dividends received 72,229 57,784
18.4 The movement in the investment in associates is as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
At 1 January 47,347,791 50,604,203
Arising on liquidation and loss of controt of subsidiaries {19,047,439) -
Share of results . 1,195,682 2,080,089
Dividends (707,512) (1,958,125)
Impairment (718,280) -
Capital reduction - (304,324)
Fareign currency translation of foreign associates - (3,054,052}
Share of other comprehensive income 108,319 -
At 31 December 28,178,561 47,347,791

Part of one of the investments in associate with a carrying value of KID7,629,156 (31 December 2016:
KD7,326,873) is pledged against term loans (note 24).

19 Investment in real estate under development

This represents the parent company’s 33.54% share in the ownership of the right of use of land located in Al
Dubaiya leased from the Ministry of Finance in Kuwait. The right of use of land is jointly owned by the parent
company and other investors through a real estate portfolio agreement. Under the agreement, the real estate is
being developed by one of the other investors, which is a company specialized in the field of real estate
svestments.

The movement of the investment in real estate undet development is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
At 1 January 4,180,940 4,108,650
Additions 22,990 206,451
Impairment in value {83,850) (134,181}
At 31 December 4,120,080 4,180,940
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and investment - #PS0 448
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 20117

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19 Investment in real estate under development (continued)

As a result of impairment testing to the catrying value of the propetty, the group recognised an impairment
loss of KID83,850 (31 December 2016: KID134,161). The impairment testing by management was based on fair
value of the property which has been determined based on two valuations obtained from independent and
qualified valuers as of the date of the consolidated financial statements.

20 Iinvestment properties
Land Building Total
KD KD KD
Cost
1 January 2017 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
31 December 2017 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2017 - 736,065 738,055
Charge for the year - 58,740 58,740
31 December 2017 - 794,795 794,795
Net book value
At 31 December 2017 1,023,750 690,194 1,713,944
Fair vaiue as at 31 December 2017 2,254,963 710,412 2,965,375
Cost
1 January 2016 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
31 December 2016 1,023,750 1,484 989 2,508,739
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2016 - 676,679 876,679
Charge for the year - 50,376 59,376
31 December 2016 - 736,055 736,085
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 1,023,750 748,934 1,772,684
Fair value as at 31 December 2016 1,712,547 1,252,828 2,965,375

Land is not depreciated. Building is depreciated over 25 years. The fair value of the investment propertics is
based on independent valuations.

The investment property represents the part of building constructed on land rented to third parties, and s
accounted for as an investment property under TAS 40.

The investment properties are mortgaged against murabaha payable (note 23).
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and nvestment - KPS0 49
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Decemhber 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

22 Due to banks

This represents outstanding amounts of the credit facilities granted to the group from local and foreign banks
in the form of ovetdraft facilities. The credit facilities carry interest rate ranging from 4.75% to 5.5% per annum
(31 December 2016: 4.5% - 5.5% per annum) and payable on demand. Credit facilities are granted against
pledge of certain available for sale investments (note 17).

23 Accounts payable and other liabilities
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 20186
KD KD
Trade payables 156,552 106,783
Cther payables 2,339,305 3,160,353
Accrued interest 99,738 209,202
Provision for staff leave 171,903 174,658
KFAS payable 220,056 219,469
NLST and Zakat payable 2,895,374 2.861,214
Due to shareholders 361,314 361,314
6,244,242 7,092,993
24 Term loans

The outstanding term loan is obtained from a local bank, carries interest rate 5.75% (31 December 2016: 5.25%)
per annum and repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments starting from 30 March 2018 and ending on 30 June
2022

Loans are repayable as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
Kb KD
Within one year 3,640,000 7,330,000
After one year 12,740,000 11,400,000
16,380,000 18,730,000

The term loan is secured by the pledge of investments at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale
investments and investment in associate (notes 14, 17 and 18).

25 Murabaha payable

This represents [slamic financing obtained from local and foreign financial institutions, carrying an effective
profit rate of 3% to 5.75% (31 December 2016: 3% - 5.25%) per annum. This financing is secured by way of
mottgage of certain available for sale investments, investment properties and property and equipment (notest7,
20 and 21) and payable in vatious instalments ending in 2021
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Consolidated Financial Siatements

31 Daecember 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

25 Murabaha payable (continued)
Murabzha payable is due as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Within one year 2,757,654 3,304,835
After one year 2,509,413 4,781,043
5,267,067 8,085,878

26 Share capital and share premium
As at 31 December 2017, the authorised, issued and paid up share capital of the parent company consists of
802,882,556 shares of 100 fils each (31 December 2016: 802,882,556 shares). All shares are in cash.

The share premium is non distributable.

27 Treasury shares
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
Number of treasury shares 6,083,892 6,083,892
Percentage of ownership (%) 0.758% 0.758%
Market value (KD} 179,475 185,559
Cost (KD) 559,232 559,232

Reserves of the parent company equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares have been carmarked as non-
distributable.

28 Reserves

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the parent company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, as amended, 10% of the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company (before contributions to IKKFAS, NLST, Zakat and directoss’ remuneration) is required to be
transferred to legal reserve. The parent company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the
reserve totals 50% of the paid up share capital.

Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid
up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of
that amount.

Voluntary reserve

The parent company’s Atticles of Association, as amended require that 10% of the profit for the year
attributable to the shareholders of the patent company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and
directors’ remuneration) should be transferred to voluntary reserve. There are no restrictions on distribution
of voluntary reserve.

No transfer is required in a year in which the parent company has incurred a loss or where cumulative tosses
exist.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

29 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Murabaha
Due to banks Term loans Payables Total
KD KD KD KD

Balance at 1 January 2017 3,847,752 18,730,000 8,085,878 30,663,630
Cash flows:

* Repayment - (4,350,000} (2,784,835) {7,134,835)

s  Proceeds 1,407,608 2,000,000 - 3,407,608
Non-cash items:

« Foreign currency differences (29,333) - {33,976) (63,309)
31 December 2017 5,226,027 16,380,000 5,267,067 26,873,094
Balance at 1 January 2016 1,661,901 12,770,000 10,823,538 25,255,439
Cash fiows:

+ Repayment {1,108} {12,040,000) (2,770,320) (14,811,426)

« Proceeds 2,171,188 18,000,000 - 20,171,188
Non-cash items:

+  Foreign currency differences 15,769 . 32,660 48,429
31 December 2016 3,847,752 18,730,000 8,085,878 30,663,630

30 Proposed dividends and annual general assembly

Subsequent to the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the board of directors have proposed
not to distribute any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017, Furthermore, the board of directors have
proposed to disttibute directors’ remuneration of KID42,000 for the year then ended. This proposal is subject
to the approval of the general assembly and the regulatory authorities.

The Annual General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on 19 July 2017 approved the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 without dividend.

31 Fiduciary accounts
Investment portfolios managed by the group and assets held in trust or in a fiducdiary capacity and related
liabilities are not treated as the group's assets or labilities and accordingly are not included in the consolidated

financial position, Total fiduciary assets as at the financial position date were KID10,305,554 (31 December
2016: KDD5,764,463).

32 Segmental information

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporting information that is regulatly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance, and is reconciled to group profit or loss.

The group’s principal trading activities are carried out within the State of Kuwait and all of the group’s assets
and liabilities are located in [Quwait in addition to GCC, Middle East and other countries. The group operates
in four business segments; instalment credit, investments, financial brokerage and real estate. The segmental
analysis of total revenues, profit for the year, total assets and total liabilities for the business segments are as
follows:



@ a8 a8 & & & a 8§ a8 a & a &

v

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPEC 52
and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2017
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
32 Segmental information (continued)
Instaiment Financial
credit Investments  brokerage Real estate Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Year ended 31 December 2017
Total revenues 1,833,143 6,745,368 {90,003) 286,788 8,775,296
(Loss)/profit for the year (2,038,788Y 5,104,138 (1,057,154) 143,074 2,151,270
As at 31 December 2017
Total assets 18,643,951 114,078,909 12,129,078 9,761,888 154,613,826
Total liabilities 4,948,722 30,044,438 529,861 - 35,523,021
Net assets 13,695,228 84,034,471 11,599,217 9,761,888 119,090,805
Year ended 31 December 2016
Total revenues 2,232,643 4,948,153 118,383 174,118 7,473,197
{Loss)/profit for the year 877,323y 3,660,595 (301,183) 114,335 2,596 444
As at 31 December 2016
Total assets 20,728,873 147,553,912 13,459,583 9,867,571 191,609,839
Total liabilities 19,678,650 18,209,940 985,500 - 38,874,080
Net assets 1,050,223 129,343,972 12,474,083 9,867,571 152,735,849
33 Related party balances and transactions

Related parties represent associates, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the group,
and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of
these transactions are approved by the group’s management. Transactions between the parent company and its
subsidiaries which are related parties of the parent company have been eliminated on consolidation and are not

disclosed in this note.

Details of significant related party balances and transactions are as follows:

31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Balances included in the consolidated statement of financial position
Instalment credit debtors-gross (note 13) 817,066 308,514
Due from related parties 181,306 1,104,711
DCue to shareholders (note 23) . 361,314 361,314
Due to related parties 1,230,500 191,888
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016
KD KD
Transactions included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Income from instaliment credit debtors 56,708 20,148
General expenses 56,501 23,521
Key management compensation:
Salaries and other short term benefils 554,217 514 637
End of service benefits 47,823 45,277




¥ OB O BR O O&% W O N O =5 P O & N BN O G BE IS Bw em mm o ws = we we w=e

1

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investiment - KPSG 53
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Finanoial 3tatementis

31 Recember 20147

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Risk management objectives and policies
The group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: matket risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The parent company’s board of directors sets out policies for reducing each of the risks discussed below.

The group does not use derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The most significant financial tisks to which the group is exposed are described below.

3431  Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk

The group mainly operates in the GCC, other Middle Eastern countries, Eutope and USA and is exposed to
foreign currency risk atising from various foreign currency exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

To mitigate the group’s exposure to foreign cusrency risk, non-ICuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored in
accordance with the group’s risk management policies. Generally, the group’s risk management procedures

distinguish short-term foseign cutrency cash flows (due within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows.

The group had the following net significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies, translated into
Kuwaiti Dinae at the closing rate:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2017 2016

KD KD
US Doilar 24,720,979 20,182,677
Lebanese Lira 7,300,044 7.475975
GBP 6,433,989 4,683,665
Egyptian Pound 1,282,388 1,082,360
UAE Dirham 148,612 146,890
Saudi Riyal (8,458) (7,908)
Euro 6,896,478 1,142,634
Omani Riyal 54,085 54,085
Jordanian Dinar 872,939 882,947
Norwegian Korene - 817.817

The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 2% (2016: 2%) increase and decrease in the KD against
above foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary assets and liabilities and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 2% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and equity and a negative number indicates
decrease in profit and equity. All other variables are held constant. There has been no change in the methods
and the assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis.

+2 % impact +2 % Impact -2 % Impact -2 % Impact
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2018 2017 2016
KD KD KD KD
Profit for the year 227,888 206,902 {227,886) (2086,902)
Equity 730,936 522,319 {730,936) (522,319)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
341 Market risk {continued)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk atises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the
fair values of financial instuments, As the group is not exposed to a significant interest rate risk on interest
bearing assets, the group is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its borrowings which are both at fixed
rate and floating interest rate. The tisk is managed by the group by maintaining an apptopriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings. The Board has established levels of interest rate risk by setting limits on the
interest rate gaps for stipulated periods.

Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies used, if required, to ensure positions are
maintained within established limits.

The effective interest rate (effective yield) of a monetaty financial instrument is the rate that, when used in a
present value calcutation, results in the carrying amount of the insteument. The rate is a historical rate for a
fixed rate instrument casried at amortised cost and a current rate fot a floating rate instrument or an instrument
carried at fair value,

The group’s intetest rate exposure based on earlier of contractual repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
December 2017 was as follows:

Sub-total Non-interest Effective
Upto1 3-12 up to Over 1 bearing interest
month 1-3 months months 1 year year items Total rate
KD KD KD KD Kb KD KD (%)
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 4,607,292 3,198,251 - 7,808,543 - - 7,805,543 1.35%
Instaiment credit
debtors 383,135 287,421 2,550,903 3,221,459 5,710,160 - 8,931,619 2.5%-8%
Investments at fair
value through profit
or foss - - - - - 7,905,472 7,905,472 -
Accounts receivable
and other assets - - - - - 4,944 621 4,944,621 -
[Due from related
parties . . R . R 191,308 191,306 -
4,990,427 3,485,672 2,550,803 11,027,002 5,710,160 13,041,398 29,778,561 “
Liabilities
Due to banks 5,226,027 - - 5,226,027 - - 5,226,027 4.75%
Accounts payable
and other liabifities - - - - - §,244,242 6,244,242 5.50%
Due to related patrties - “ - - - 1,230,500 1,230,500 -
Term loans - 910,000 2,730,000 3,640,000 12,740,000 - 16,380,000 -
Murabaha payable 949,414 - 1,808,240 2,757,654 2,509,413 - 5,267,067 5,75%

Provision for
emptoyees’ end of
service henefits . . . . . 1,175,185 1,475,185

3%-5.75%

8,175,441 910,000 4,538,240 11,623,681 16,249,413 8,648,927 35,623,021
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
341  Market risk (continued)
b) Interest rate risk (continued)

The group’s interest rate exposure based on eatlier of contractual repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
December 2016 was as follows:

Sub-total Non-interest Effective
Upto1 312 up to Over 1 bearing interest
month 1-3 months months 1 year year items Total rate
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD (%)
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents £,536,799 3,667,130 - 10,103,929 - - 10,103,929 1.35
Instalment credit
debtors 1,644,197 1,524,532 2,622,266 5,760,995 5,327,658 - 11,118,853 2.5-8
Investments at fair
value through profit
or loss - - - - - 6,814,873 6,814,873 -
Accounts receivable
and other assetls - - - - 364,424 5,457 525 5,821,949 -
Due from related
parties . . . . _ 1,104,711 1,104,711
8,180,096 5,091,662 2,622,266 15,894,924 5,692,082 13,377,109 34,964,115
Liabilities
[ue to banks 3,847,752 - - 3,847,752 - - 3,847,752 4.5-5.5%
Accounts payable
and other liabilities - - - - - 7,092,993 7,002 993 -

Due to relaied parties

- - - - - 191,888 191,888
Term loans 1,370,000 2,140,000 3,820,000 7,330,000 11,400,000 -

18,730,000 4.5-5,25

g Murabaha payable 956,209 - 2,348,626 3,304,835 4,781,043 - 8,085,878 3-6.25
Pravision for

employees' end of
@ service benefits 3 ) _ . . 925,579 925,579 -
@ 6,173,961 2,140,000 6,168,626 14,482,587 16,181,043 8,210,460 38,874,090
a The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the result for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest
- rates of +1% and —1% (2016: +1% and —1%) with effect from the beginning of the year. These changes are
& considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market condition. The calculations are

based on the group’s financial instruments held at each financial position date. All othet variables ate held
j@ constant.

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

. 2017 2018
2 % % 1% %
& KD KD KD KD
i Results for the year (101,358} 101,359 (94,410} 94,410
' c) Price risk

The group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its equity investments. Equity investments ace classified
cither as investments at fair value through profit or loss (including trading securities), and available for sale

%] investinents.
- | To manage its price risk atising from investments in equity securities, the group diversifies its portfolio.
- Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the group.

&
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

341  Market risk (continued)

c) Price risk (continued)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
consolidated financial statements date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lowes, the effect on the profit for the year and equity for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 would have been as follows:

Profit for the year Equity
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 2016 2017 2016
KD KD KD KD
lnvestments at fair value through profit or
loss 790,547 1681,487 - -
Available for sale investments - - 18,646,676 19,881,269

342  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrament will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The group’s credit policy and exposure to credit tisk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of tisks with individuals or groups of customers
in specific locations or business through diversification of its activities. [t also obtains security when

appropriate.

The group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
financial position date, as summatised below:

2
2
2
B
B
|
2
|
|
&
|
]
a
=2
2
|
a
a
2
@
€
|

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 20186
KD KD
Cash and cash equivalents 7,805,543 10,103,929
@ Instalment credit debtors 8,931,619 11,118,653
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 14) 6,962,467 5,930,206
. Accounts receivable and other assets 4,944,621 5,821,949
g Due from related parties 191,306 1.104.711
% Total 28,835,556 34,079,448

B
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| 34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
] 343 Concentration of assets
The distribution of assets by geographic region is as follows:
ﬁ Other
@ Middle
Eastern Europe
Kuwait GCC countries and other USA Total
2 KD KD KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2017
@ Cash and cash equivalents 2,234,712 662,939 4,904,551 - 3,341 7,805,543
Instaiment credit debtors 2,517,442 - 6,414,177 - - 8,931,619
@ [nvesiments at fair value
through profit or loss 7,361,041 55,669 5,344 - 483,418 7,905,472
Accounts receivable and other )
@ asseis 1,752,747 1,820,980 1,370,894 - - 4,944,621
Cue from related parties 111,416 71,202 8,688 - - 191,306
] Properties held for trading - 1,327,885 - - - 1,327,865
Available for sale investments 49,852,052 2,627,869 332,754 12,527,625 21,126,459 86,466,759
g Investment in associates 28,178,561 - - - - 28,178,561
Investment in real estate under
development 4,120,080 - - - - 4,420,080
@ Investment properties 1,713,944 - . - - 1,713,944
Property and equipment 2,969,279 1,631 67,148 - - 3,028,056
% Total 100,801,274 6,568,155 13,103,554 12,527,625 21,613,218 154,613,826
@ At 31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalenis 3,057 366 408,129 4,761,792 65,865 1,810,777 10,103,929
@ installment credit debtors 5,107,680 - 6,010,973 - - 11,118,653
Investments at fair value
}E through profit or loss 6,808,509 - 6,364 - - 6,814,873
Accounts receivable and other
@ assels 1,206,005 94,940 1,422,022 365,825 2,733,157 5,821,949
Due from related parties 993,939 - 110,772 - - 1,104,741
Properties held for trading - 1,313,047 - - - 1,313,947
@ Available for sale investments 48,428 561 1,045,370 202,567 20,879,457 28,256,735 98,812,690
Investment in associates 28,300,353 - . 19,047,438 - 47,347 791
) Investment in real estate under
y development 4,180,940 - - - - 4,180,940
@ Investment properties 1,772,684 - - - - 1,772,684
Property and equipment 3,137,670 4,041 76,061 - - 3,217,772
@ Total 102,993,707 2,666,427 12,590,551 40,358,585 32,800,669 191,609,938
|

344  Liquidity risk

&2 Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall duc. To limit this risk,
i management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitots liquidity on
a daily basis.
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

344  Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summatises the maturity profile of the group’s assets and liabilities. The maturities of assets and
liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from the financial position date to the conttactual
matutity date. The maturity profile for available for sale investments is determined based on management's estimate of
liquidation of those investments. Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2017:

& & @ @ @ & o 0 g v g g o g aguw aawsw

Sub-total Up
Up to 1-3 312 to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 4,607,292 3,198,251 - 7,805,543 - 7,805,643
Instaliment credit debtors 383,136 287,421 2,550,803 3,221,459 5,710,160 8,831,619
Investmenis at fair value

through profit or loss 7,905,472 - - 7,906,472 - 7,905,472
Accounts receivable and

other assets 414,958 1,044,828 3,484,838 4,944,621 - 4,944,621
Due from related parties - - 191,306 191,306 - 191,306
Properties held for trading - - 1,327,865 1,327,865 - 1,327,865
Available for sale

investments - - . - 86,466,759 86,466,759
Investment in associates - - - “ 28,178,561 28,178,561
investment in real estate

under development . . ) . R 4,120,080 4,120,080
investment properties - - - - 1,713,944 1,713,944
Property and equipment . . - . 3,028,068 3,028,056
Total assets 13,310,854 4,530,500 7,554,912 25,396,266 129,217,560 154,613,826
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 5,226,027 - - 5,226,027 . 5,226,027
Accounts payable and

other liabilities 312,479 510,879 2,560,331 3,383,689 2,860,553 6,244,242
Due to refated parties - . 1,230,500 1,230,500 . 1,230,600
Term loans - 910,000 2,730,000 3,640,000 12,740,000 16,380,000
Murabaha payable 949,414 . 1,808,240 2,757,654 2,500,413 5,267,067
Provision for employees’

end of service benefits - - - - 1,175,185 1,175,185

@ Total liabilities 6,487,920 1,420,879 8,329,071 16,237,870 19,285,151 35,623,021

&
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

34.4  Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016:

Sub-total
Up to 1-3 312 Up to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KB KD KD KD KD KD
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 6,536,799 3,567,130 - 10,103,929 - 10,103,920
installment credit debtors 1,644,197 1,524,532 2,622,266 5,790,995 5,327,658 11,118,653
investments at fair value
through profit or loss 6,814,873 - - 6,814,873 - 6,814,873
Accounis receivable and
other assets 153,397 4,929,768 358,417 5,442,582 379,367 5,821,949
Due from related parties - - 1,104,711 1,104,711 - 1,104,711
Properties held for trading - - 1,313,047 1,313,947 - 1,313,047
Available for sale
investmenis - - - - 98,812,690 98,812,690
Investment in associates - - - - 47,347,791 47,347,794
Investment in real estate
under developmemnt . B B R 4,180,940 4,180,040
Investment propetties - - - - 1,772,684 1,772,684
Property and equipment . _ _ . 3,217,772 3,217,772
Total assets 15,149,266 10,021,430 5,400,341 30,671,037 161,038,902 191,609,939
LIABH.ITIES
Due to banks 3,847,762 - - 3,847,762 - 3,847,752
Accounts payahle and
other liabilities 127,588 1,131,082 2,416,078 4,274,716 2,818,277 7,092,993
Due to related parties - - 191,888 191,888 - 191,888
Term loans 1,370,000 2,140,000 3,820,000 7,330,000 $1,400,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable 956,209 . 2,348,626 3,304,835 4,781,043 8,085,878
Provision for employees’
end of service benefits - - - - 925,579 925,579
Total liabilities 6,901,547 3,271,052 8,776,592 18,949,191 19,924,899 38,874,080
The contractual maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flow is as follows:
Sub-total
Upto 1-3 312 Upto Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
31 December 2017
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 5,481,683 - . 5,491,683 . 5,491,683
Accounts payable and other
liabilities 312,479 510,879 2,560,331 3,383,689 2,860,553 6,244,242
Due to related parties . - 1,230,500 1,230,500 - 1,230,500
Term loans . 962,325 2,886,976 3,849,300 13,472,550 17,321,850
Murabaha payable 1,004,005 - 1,874,211 2,878,216 2,641,037 5,519,253
Provisicn far employess' end
of service benefits “ . - - 1,475,185 1,175,185
6,808,167 1,473,204 8,552,017 16,833,388 20,149,325 36,982,713

%
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

344  Liquidity risk (continued)

Sub-total
Upto 1-3 3-12 Upto Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
31 December 2016
Financiai liabiiities
Due to banks 3,861,833 - - 3,861,833 - 3,861,833
Accounts payable and :
other liabilities 727,586 1,131,052 2,416,078 4,274,718 2,818,277 7,092,993
Due to related parties - - 191,888 151,888 - 191,888
Term loans 256,786 2,202,372 6,220,392 8,769,550 11,285,458 20,055,008
Murabaha payable 997,622 47,411 982,140 2,027,173 5,605,169 7,632,342
Provision for employees’
end of service henefits - - - - 925,579 925,579
5,843,827 3,470,835 9,810,498 19,125,160 20,634,483 39,759,643
35 Fair value measurement

35.1  Fair value hierarchy
Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

» Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (anadjusted) in active muarkets for
identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that ate obsetvable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or inditectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

35 Fair value measurement (continued)

35,2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position may alsc be categorised as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2017 2018

KD KD
Financial assets:
Loans and recefvables at amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,805,543 10,103,929
Instailments credit debtors 8,931,619 11,118,653
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,944,621 5,821,949
Due from related parties 191,306 1,104,711
investments at fair value through profit or loss:
Investmentis at fair value through profit or loss 7,805,472 6,814,873
Available for sale investments:
Available for sale investments — at fair vaiue 74,738,343 61,132,135
Available for sale investments - at cost 11,728,416 37,680,555
Total 116,245,320 133,776,805
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Due to banks 5,226,027 3,847,752
Accounts payable and other liabilities 6,244,242 7,082,993
Due to related parties 1,230,500 191,888
Term loans 16,380,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable 5,267,067 8,085,878
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 1,175,185 925,579
Total 35,523,021 38,874,090

In the opinion of management, except for certain available for sale investments which are cattied at cost for
reasons specified in note 17 to these consolidated financial statements, the carrying amounts of financial assets

and Habilities as at 31 December 2017 approximate their fair values.

The level within which the financial asset or Yability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of

significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on 4 recurring basis in the consolidated statement of

financial position ate grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
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35 Fair value measurement (continued)

35.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

31 December 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Investments at fair value through profit or

loss:

Local quoted shares 881,992 - - 881,992
Fareign guoted shares ' 61,013 - - 61,013
investment in managed portfolios 6,962,467 - - 6,962,467

Avallable for sale investments:

Local quoted shares 6,133,960 - - 6,133,960
Local unguoted shares - - 12,725,268 12,725,268
Foreign unquoted shares - - 24,895,796 24,895,796
Investment in managed portfolios 19,454,917

. 11,338,600 30,790,517

Investment funds - 192,802 - 192,802

33,491,349 192,802 48,959,664 82,643,815

31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Investments at fair value through profit or
loss:
l.ocal quoted shares 830,398 - - 830,399
Foreign quoted shares 54,268 - - 54,268
Investment in managed porifolios 5,930,206 - - 5,930,206
Available for sale investments:
Local quoted shares 5,609,999 ~ - 5,609,099
Local unquoted shares - - 9,632,716 9,632,716
Foreign unquoted shares - - 14,361,555 14,361,555
Investment in managed portfolios 19,854 058 - 14,463,200 31,317,258
Investment funds - 210,607 - 210,607

32,278,930 210,607 35,457,471 67,947,008

There have been no transfers between levels during the reporting period.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value measuretnent
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs
and fair value, are set out below.

Available for sale investments:

The group’s finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair values, in consultation with third party valuation specialists for complex valuations, whete required.
Valuation techniques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objectve of
maximising the use of matket-based information.

The valuation techniques used for instruments categotised in Levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Certain unquoted equity securities are valued based on book value and price to book multiple method using
latest financial statements available of the investee entities.
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35 Fair value measurement (continued)
35.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Available for sale investments: (continued)
Other unquoted equity securities are valued using cash flow projections based on financial estimates approved
by senior management. The growth rates used to artive at the terminal value ranged from 2% to 3%. Further
the revenue growth projections are based on the assessment of the future business growth.
Key assumptions used in fair value calinlations
The calculation of fair value is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

= Discount rates;

* Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period;

* Local inflation rates.

Disconnt rates
Discount rates are calculated by using risk free rate, equity market risk premium, beta factor and company
specific risk premium (alpha factor).

Market share assumptions
"These assumptions, as well as use of industry data for growth rates, are important as the entity’s relative position
to its competitors might change over the budget period.

Projected growth rates and local inflation rares
Assumptions are based on references from published industry research repotts.

Investments in funds have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) of the fund provided by the fund
manager,

Gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss for the year are included in profit on
sale of available for sale investments.

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to teasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change
significantly amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss, total assets, total liabilities or
total equity.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Level 3 fair value measurements

The group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techaiques inputs
that are not based on observable market data. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled from
beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2017 2016

KD KD
Opening halance 35,457,471 30,616,586
Change in fair value 1,432,992 4,840,885
Sales (73,413} -
Purchases 978,379 -
Arising from liquidation and loss of controt of subsidiaries 11,164,235 -

Closing balance 48,959,664 35,457 471
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35 Fair value measurement (continued)
382  Fait value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Leve! 3 fair value measurements (continued)
Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumption would not change
significantly amounts recognised in profit or loss, total assets or total liabilities or total equity.

Non-financial instruments
Investment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2017 and are classified under level 3 fair value hierarchy

and reconciliation is provided in note 20.

Description of significant unobsetvable inputs to valuation of non-financial assets:

Fair value of investment properties were determined using Mark to Matket method, conducted by valvators
considering transaction prices of the property and similar properties. The significant unobservable valuation
input used for the purpose of valuation is the market price per square foot / meter and varies from property
to property. A reasonable change in this input would result in an equivalent amount of change in fair value.

36 Capital risk management
The group’s capital management objectives are to ensute the group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide adequate refurn to its sharcholders through the optimisation of the capital structure.

The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions
and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or

sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the group consists of the following:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2017 20186
KD KD
Due to banks (note 22) 5,226,027 3,847,752
Term loans (note 24) 16,380,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable {note 25) 5,267,067 8,085,878
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 12) (7,805,543} (10,103,929
Net debt 19,067,551 20,559,701
Equity 119,090,806 152,735,849
Net debt to equity ratio 16.01% 13.46%
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